

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

Article I – Name

The official name of the corporation is Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club.

Article II – Purpose

The purpose of this corporation is to provide support to the Rogers High School boys and girls hockey teams.

Article III – Membership

Membership is open to all persons—regardless of race, gender, religion, or national origin—interested in furthering the purpose of the organization. Membership is valid for one year. There shall be three categories of membership.

A. General Membership

1. General members are parents or guardians of players participating in the Rogers High School hockey program. General members shall pay annual dues on a per player basis, have a right to one vote at the annual meeting, and have a right to run for office on the Booster Club Board.

B. Blue Line Membership

1. Blue Line members are individuals who support the Rogers High School hockey program. Blue Line members shall pay annual dues. Blue Line members shall not have voting rights and shall not be eligible to hold an officer position on the Booster Club Board.
2. The Rogers High School Athletic/Activities Director shall be a Blue Line Member, but shall be exempt from paying membership dues.
3. The Rogers High School boys' hockey team's head varsity coach and the girls' hockey team's head varsity coach shall be Blue Line members, but shall be exempt from paying membership dues.

C. Corporate Sponsor Membership

1. Corporate members are organizations which support Rogers High School hockey. Corporate members shall pay annual dues. Corporate members shall not have voting rights and shall not be eligible to hold an officer position on the Booster Club Board.

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

Article IV – Meetings

A. Booster Club Board Meetings

1. The Booster Club Board shall meet at least nine times per year. The fiscal year of the Booster Club shall be from July 1 – June 30 of each year.
2. A quorum of the Booster Club Board shall consist of a majority of Board members. Any action determined by a majority of those present at the meeting when a quorum has been established shall be the action of the Booster Club Board.

B. General Membership Annual Meeting

1. The general membership shall meet at least one time per year. A quorum of the general membership shall consist of not fewer than 10% of the total eligible membership. Any action determined by a majority of those present at the annual meeting, when a quorum has been established, shall be the action of the general membership of the Booster Club.

C. Special Meetings

1. Special meetings of the Board or the general membership may be called when deemed necessary by the president or by petition of the general membership.
2. A quorum of the general membership shall consist of not fewer than 10% of the total eligible membership. Any action determined by a majority of those present at a special meeting when a quorum has been established shall be the action of the general membership of the Booster Club.

D. Meeting Minutes

1. Minutes of each meeting shall be recorded by the Booster Club secretary.
2. The minutes shall be available to members upon request.

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

Article V – Board of Directors

The business and property of the Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club shall be vested in the Board of Directors which is comprised of the Officers of the Corporation and the Directors of the Booster Club. The Board of Directors shall not be compensated for serving on the Board.

A. Officers

1. The officers of the corporation shall be: President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.
2. All officers are voting members on the Booster Club Board.

B. Directors

1. The directors of the Booster Club shall be: Boys Team Director, Girls Team Director, Boys Fundraising Director, and Girls Fundraising Director.
2. All directors are voting members on the Booster Club Board.

C. Duties of the Officers

1. The president shall preside at the general membership annual meeting, the Board meetings, and any special general membership meetings. The president shall oversee all business of the organization and delegate tasks necessary to carry out the purpose of the organization. The president or president's designee shall represent the Booster Club at all external activities.
2. The vice president shall preside in the absence of the president and at such times perform the duties of that position. The vice president shall lead the financial audit.
3. The secretary shall create and maintain accurate records of all proceedings of the organization. The secretary shall be responsible for maintaining the Booster Club's Bylaws and Policies and Procedures Manual.
4. The treasurer shall be responsible for the financial aspects of all endeavors of the Booster Club. The treasurer shall create and maintain accurate financial records. The treasurer shall provide a financial status report at Booster Club meetings and shall submit a written report at the annual meeting.

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

D. Duties of the Directors

1. The team director shall be the liaison between the team and the Board on matters between the team and the Board. The team director shall be responsible for coordinating general memberships.
2. The fundraising director shall ensure all fundraising activities are executed within the guidelines set forth in the Booster Club's policies and procedures. The fundraising director shall be responsible for securing a coordinator for corporate sponsorship solicitation.

E. Officer and Director Position Vacancies

1. A vacancy in the office of the president prior to a term conclusion shall be filled by the vice president.
2. Vacancies in other offices shall be filled by appointment of the president, with a majority approval of the Board, for the remainder of the term.

F. Removal of Officers and Directors

1. Any officer or director may be removed following proper notice, a hearing of the Board, and a majority vote of the Board for removal.

Article VI – Board of Directors Elections

An election of Board members shall be conducted once per year at the annual meeting.

A. Board of Director Terms

1. All elected terms shall be two years in length.
2. On odd years, the following positions shall be open for election: President, Secretary, Girls Team Director, and Boys Fundraising Director.
3. On even years, the following positions shall be open for election: Vice President, Treasurer, Boys Team Director, and Girls Fundraising Director.

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

B. Nominations

1. A nominating committee consisting of Board and/or general members shall be appointed by the president.
2. The committee shall present a slate of at least one candidate for each office open for election.
3. Nominations may be made from the floor at the annual meeting with the consent of the nominee.

C. Voting

1. The nominating committee shall be responsible for the preparation, distribution, collection, and counting of votes.
2. The nominating committee shall be responsible for recording and reporting the results to the president and the secretary.
3. The election shall be made by majority vote of the general members present at the annual meeting assuming a quorum has been established.

Article VII – Policies and Procedures

The Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club will adopt and maintain a written policies and procedures manual. The manual will comply with all federal, state, municipal, and school district regulations. Only the Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club Board of Directors has the authority to modify the Policies and Procedures Manual.

Article VIII – Bylaw Amendments

The Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular meeting provided the proposed amendments have been presented orally and recorded in writing in the minutes at the two directly preceding regular meetings.

ORGANIZATIONAL BY-LAWS
ROGERS ROYALS FACE-OFF BOOSTER CLUB

Article IX – Restrictions

A. Representation of the Organization

1. Only the president or president designee shall have the authority to speak or act for the organization on official matters.

B. District 728

1. Membership in the Rogers Royals Face-Off Booster Club shall not entitle any member to interfere, in any way, with the planning, policy-making, player participation, or coaching of any organized activity within the District 728 school system.
2. Important Booster Club activities shall be coordinated with the Rogers High School Athletic/Activities Director so as to not interfere with other athletic programs or school events.

Article X – Dissolution

The Booster Club may be dissolved in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. Upon dissolution, all remaining assets shall be distributed to a not-for-profit organization created and operated exclusively for the benefit of student athletes. The recipient organization shall qualify as exempt under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.